
 

Bellows Falls Village Trustees Special Meeting 

Saturday, December 5, 2015 

 

Present:  Sanford Martin, Evelyn Weeks, Colin James, Nancy McAuliffe, Stefan Golec 

 

Also Present:  Willis D. Stearns, II, Municipal Manager; Kerry Bennett, Village Clerk; Jim 

McAuliffe 

 

Press:  None 

 

Call to Order:  Meeting was called to order at 8:00 a.m. by President Nancy McAuliffe 

  

Additions to the Agenda for Routine Administrative Matters and/or Pressing Matters that will 

require ratification at a future meeting:  None 

 

Approve Minutes of November 10, 2015: Colin James made the motion to approve the minutes 

of November 10, 2015 as printed.  Motion was seconded by Sanford Martin.  Motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda: (3 minutes per person):  None 

 

Agenda: 

1. FY2017 Budget Review.    

 

General Fund 

Page 1 - No changes 

Page 2 -   Salaries – union contracts 1.5% increase - budgeted 3% for any merit increases at 

discretion of Manager 

Page 3 -   Village report - $2,200 to $1,500 – Bennett stated that this could be dropped as it 

is the intention to have 300 printed instead of the usual 500 due to the fact that so 

many reports are thrown out. 

Blake Street & Waypoint water/sewer – the Board made the decision to move 

these expenses to the Water/Sewer Funds. 

 

Page 4 -  FACT TV - $1500 to $1000 – The Board decided to reduce this allocation due to 

the decrease in meetings. 

 

Page 5 -  Chief Salary – The Board discussed hiring a fire chief vs. continuing with an 

administrative chief.   McAuliffe stated she felt this position could be continued 

with the Police Chief as the administrative Fire Chief.  The Board asked Stearns 

what his recommendation would be.  Stearns stated he would agree with 

McAuliffe and suggested changing the Chief’s Salary to Administrative Chief of 

$15,000. In addition, the benefits, including health, dental, life, and retirement 

could be eliminated for this position.  Stearns reported that this is not a new idea 

and is done in other communities in Vermont.   

  



 

Bellows Falls Village Trustees Special Meeting 

December 5, 2015 – Page 2 

 

 Salary to go from $63,300 to $15,000 and cut all benefits  - Stearns will 

recalculate these line items and distribute to the Board at Tuesday’s meeting. 

 

 Weeks stated she would like to discuss a full time department vs. volunteer and 

would personally like a volunteer department.  Martin felt that it was obvious the 

voters want a full time department, however, he feels that the overtime for the fire 

department be investigated further.   A lengthy discussion on the fire department’s 

procedure on EMT calls followed and Stearns will discuss this further with the 

Administrative Chief and Deputy Chief. 

 

 Call boxes – Stearns noted that we are billing out $9,300 and spending 

approximately $1,600.  The Board discussed eliminating some call boxes.  Stearns 

noted that when Village was without power call boxes still worked and the Board 

will leave this as is. 

 

 Training increase from $1,000 to $8,000 -  Stearns stated that this was to train two 

current full time staff to become fire inspectors and for more training for the on-

call staff. 

 

Page 6 -  Maintenance dropped $7,000 –  Stearns explained that most of major apparatus 

repairs have been done and anticipates less cost for repairs. 

 

Page 8 -  Wells St Playground – the Board made the decision to move the water allocation 

of $1,500  to water fund as well as the Village Pool. 

 

Stearns stated that he anticipates a drop in the tax rate and a will have new budget 

sheets for the December 8 meeting. 

 

Capital Fund – Stearns stated that there are no plans for this fund for FY2017 

 

Water Fund - Wells Street, Pool, Waypoint & Blake Street allocations will be transferred from 

the General Fund to the Water Fund. 

 

Page 2 - OT – due to special projects ongoing for next 2 years 

 

Page 5 - Transfer from Water to General Fund - $15,600 –  Stearns stated that these are the 

funds received by the Water Department for the cell tower fees located at the 

Water Plant. The Board discussed the rationale of this practice with the majority 

of the Board thinking these should remain in the Water Fund and asked Stearns 

what his opinion was.   Stearns stated that he would recommend that these funds 

remain in the Water Fund.   

 

 



 

Bellows Falls Village Trustees Special Meeting 

December 5, 2015 – Page 3 

 

Weeks made motion to not transfer these funds to General Fund and leave in 

Water Fund.  Motion was seconded by Sanford Martin.  Motion passed McAuliffe, 

James, Weeks and Martin voting in favor of the motion.  Golec opposed. 

 

Wastewater Fund – No changes were made other than the allocations that will be transferred 

from the Waypoint & Blake Street General Fund lines. 

 

Stearns stated that his projection for water/wastewater rates is that he does not anticipate the 

need to raise fees but that the Board continue with the practice of  dropping the minimum usage 

by 100 cubic feet.  

 

 

Police & Fire Grant Fund – Golec asked about purchasing a vest for the K9.  Stearns stated that 

he has had a conversation with the dog’s owner/handler and does not anticipate the need for a 

vest.  

  

Other Business: 

 Weeks asked the other Board members what their thoughts were concerning the proposed 

Justice Center – Martin very skeptical; Golec same; James same, need more information; 

Weeks would like impact study; McAuliffe stated she felt this was a pipe dream of Sheriff 

Clark’s and was a long way off.   Stearns stated that as comments come to his office he is 

forwarding them to Sheriff Clark.  Stearns reminded the Trustees that neither the Bellows 

Falls Trustees or the Rockingham Selectboard has any input in this project.  However, 

Stearns stated that he will continue providing space for Sheriff Clark to continue his dialogue 

with community.  Stearns noted that a public meeting has been scheduled by Sheriff Clark 

for December 16 either in the main theater or lower theater for public discussion.    Stearns 

stated that this does not either endorse or deny the project and these meetings will not be a 

warned Selectboard or Trustee meeting.  Boards do not have any jurisdiction and any petition 

would have to be interpreted by counsel for validity.  Stearns stated that he feels it is way too 

premature for either Board to support or not support this concept. 

 McAuliffe asked the Board members to look at the school garden at the Hetty Green Park 

before Tuesday’s meeting. 

 

Executive Session:  None 

 

Adjourn:  Colin James made the motion to adjourn at 10:45, seconded by Sanford Martin.  

Motion passed unanimously. 
 

 

 

 

     Attest:         

      Kerry Bennett, Village Clerk 


